Міністерство освіти і науки України Донецький національний університет імені Василя Стуса Факультет іноземних мов Кафедра англійської філології

Стрюк Н.В., Юрковська М.М.

Збірка лексико-граматичних тестів з навчальної дисципліни «Друга іноземна мова» (англійська) для студентів 2 курсу факультету іноземних спеціальності 035 Філологія. 035.04 Германські мови і літератури (переклад включно), освітня програма «Німецька мова і переклад»

Модуль 2

МЕТОДИЧНИЙ ПОСІБНИК

Вінниця – 2019

Рекомендовано до друку Вченою радою факультету іноземних мов Донецького національного університету імені Василя Стуса (протокол № 9 від 25.05.2018 р.)

Рецензенти:

Ситенко О.О.,	кандидат філологічних наук, доцент, доцент кафедри				
	англійської філології факультету іноземних мов Донецького				
	національного університету імені Василя Стуса				
Григошкіна Я.В.,	кандидат філологічних наук, доцент кафедри теорії та				
	практики перекладу факультету іноземних мов Донецького національного університету імені Василя Стуса				

Укладачі:

 Юрковська М.М.,
 кандидат філологічних наук, доцент кафедри англійської філології факультету іноземних мов Донецького національного університету імені Василя Стуса асистент кафедри англійської філології факультету іноземних мов Донецького національного університету імені Василя Стуса

> © Стрюк Н. В., 2019 © Юрковська М. М., 2019

Зміст

Вступ	4
Розділ 1. Лексика	5
Part 1 Britain and Primary Education. Student's Talk 1	5
Part 2. The United States. Elementary and Secondary Education. Student's Talk 2	8
Part 3. Comparing British and American Education. Student's Talk 3	11
Part 4. Qualifications. Student's Talk 4	14
Part 5. The Private-State Mishmash	17
Part 6. The School of Fish	23
Розділ 2. Граматика	24
Part 1. The Future Indefinite Tense	24
Part 2. The Future Continuous Tense	26
Part 3. The Future Perfect Tense	29
Part 4. Future Tense Forms. Different Means of Expressing Future Actions	32
Part 5. The Rules of sequence of tenses. Reported Speech	35
Part 6 The Passive Voice	38
Зразок модульного контролю	42
Відповіді	48
Джерела	53

Вступ

Методичний посібник призначений для роботи студентів 2 курсу факультету іноземних мов спеціальності спеціальності 035 Філологія. 035.04 Германські мови і літератури (переклад включно) з навчальної дисципліни «Друга іноземна мова» (англійська) для аспектів «Лексика» і «Граматика» (Модуль 2) та відповідає затвердженій навчальній програмі із вказаної дисципліни.

Посібник розроблений з метою здійснення контролю знань у студентів, містить низку лексико-граматичних тестів, які відповідають лексикограматичним темам другого модуля 3-го семестру навчання. Водночас посібник може використовуватися студентами у самостійній роботі для формування та закріплення одиниць лексико-граматичної компетенції.

Збірка тестів складається з двох розділів «Лексика» та «Граматика», кожен з яких містить по 6 частин. У розділі «Лексика» представлені тести на перевірку лексичного матеріалу з таких тем як: Britain and Primary Education. Elementary and Secondary Education of the USA. Comparing British and American Education. Qualifications. The Private-State Mishmash. The School of Fish. Тести у розділі «Граматика» охоплюють наступні теми: The Future Indefinite Tense, The Future Continuous Tense, The Future Perfect Tense, Different Means of Expressing Future Actions, The Rules of sequence of tenses. Reported Speech, The Passive Voice. Вкінці методичного посібника додається список використаних джерел та відповіді до тестів.

Розділ 1 Лексика

Part 1. Britain and Primary Education. Student's Talk 1

- 1. Tuition at the more prestigious high schools, which are all ______ schools, is very expensive.
- a) infant school
- b) boarding school
- c) prep school
- d) public school
- 2. Until he stared school at Easter, my 5 year old son attended a local day
- a) primary school
- b) prep school
- c) nursery
- d) grammar school
- 3. There is a day care _____ for children and other facilities for the community.
- a) crèche
- b) kindergarten
- c) prep school
- d) primary school
- 4. The synonym for *syllabus* is _____.
- a) programmer
- b) program
- c) studies
- d) curriculum
- 5. In Britain, an ______ school is a school for children between the ages of five and seven.
- a) primary
- b) boarding
- c) public
- d) infant
- 6. A _____ is an informal school for very young children, where they learn things by playing.
- a) voluntary
- b) nursery

- c) crèche
- d) playgroup
- 7. A _____ class is a class that children go into when they first start school at the age of four or five.
- a) reception
- b) first
- c) prep
- d) introductory
- 8. A ______ school in the UK is a school for children aged between eleven and 18 who have passed an examination.
- a) grammar
- b) comprehensive
- c) junior
- d) infant
- 9. A ______ school in the UK for children above the age of eleven of all abilities.
- a) secondary
- b) private
- c) comprehensive
- d) grammar

10.A ______ school is free to go to because the government provides the money for it.

- a) charter
- b) state
- c) governmental
- d) fee-paying
- 11.Girls tend to do better academically in single-sex schools than in ______ ones.
- a) free
- b) voluntary
- c) coeducational
- d) combined

12.Don't start talking about ghosts - they give me the _____.

- a) heebie-jeebies
- b) mumbo-jumbo
- c) nitty-gritty
- d) palsy-walsy

- 13. Amid all the ______ of the party convention, it was easy to forget about the real political issues.
- a) razzle-dazzle
- b) teeny-weeny
- c) yoo-hoo
- d) palsy-walsy

14. You don't believe in horoscopes and all that _____, do you?

- a) mumbo jumbo
- b) heebie-jeebies
- c) nitty-gritty
- d) palsy-walsy
- 15.Let's get down to the _____ how much will it cost?
- a) mumbo jumbo
- b) heebie-jeebies
- c) nitty-gritty
- d) palsy-walsy
- 16.Many people have noticed that the mayor has been too _____ with the Liberal premier.
- a) heebie-jeebies
- b) palsy-walsy
- c) mumbo jumbo
- d) nitty-gritty
- 17.A (an) _____, in some parts of England, is an exam taken by children aged eleven that affects what type of school they go to next.
- a) five-plus
- b) eleven-plus
- c) three-plus
- d) twelve-plus
- 18.____, we're over here!
- a) razzle-dazzle
- b) teeny-weeny
- c) yoo-hoo
- d) palsy-walsy

19. The term ______ is now used in England only of certain private schools.

- a) kindergarten
- b) nursery
- c) pre school
- d) primary school

- 20. Those who fail the exam, go to a secondary modern school, where they receive an education which is less _____.
- a) academic
- b) professional
- c) important
- d) interesting

Part 2. The United States. Elementary and Secondary Education. Student's Talk 2

- 1. Steve never studies, but he always gets good _____.
- a) grades
- b) gradation
- c) estate
- d) estimation
- 2. A ______ school is a private school supported by a particular church or parish.
- a) nursery
- b) comprehensive
- c) vocational
- d) parochial
- 3. The term ______ includes farming, tillage of the soil, dairy farming, ranching, production or raising of crops, poultry, or livestock, and production of poultry or livestock products in an unmanufactured state.
- a) "farming operation"
- b) "poultry operation"
- c) "farm moderation"
- d) "poultry management"
- 4. Lack of ______ and transport can make it difficult for many women to access training and support.
- a) kindergarten
- b) childcare
- c) nursery
- d) prep
- 5. Laughter filled the streets along with frequent _____ and bargains being made every few seconds.'
- a) chit-chat
- b) fifty-fifty

- c) flip-flop
- d) mishmash
- 6. We have seen an incredible _____ on the nuclear policy by this Party.
- a) jim-jam
- b) flip-flop
- c) jim-jams
- d) mishmash
- 7. A children's game in which a small object is passed between the hands by one of the players, and, the hands being suddenly closed, the other player is required to guess in which hand the object remains, sometimes with the reward for a correct guess of keeping it.
- a) henny-penny
- b) fend-handy
- c) dandy-trendy
- d) handy-dandy
- 8. I like the simple, durable types that have manual controls no electronic
- a) fifty-fifty
- b) jim-jams
- c) no-no
- d) hocus-pocuses
- 9. This is a definite ______if you're looking for quality protein to add to your active lifestyle.
- a) no-no
- b) nether area
- c) nor and not
- d) stop
- 10. Your typical bad comedy is a mess, a sloppy _____ of junk with maybe a few funny bits here and there.
- a) twenty-twenty
- b) mishmash
- c) hocus-pocus
- d) jim-jams
- 11. With ______ we now see where our strategy went wrong.
- a) fifty-fifty hindsight
- b) twenty-twenty hindsight
- c) twenty-twenty insight
- d) Fifty-fifty insight

- 12. Our aim is ______ representation total gender balance in the system.
- a) fifty-fifty
- b) half
- c) one and a half
- d) 100%
- 13. The president has a strong and experienced staff to _____us ____ this difficult time.
- a) pull ... out
- b) come ... through
- c) get ... through
- d) pull ... through
- 14.My only assumption is that an _____ for law school exists and that it can, to some extent, be measured.
- a) aptitude
- b) possibility
- c) aptitude
- d) admission
- 15. Youths in trouble with the law and students in danger of ______ school also are eligible for the organization's programs.
- a) passing
- b) taking
- c) failing
- d) having
- 16.Next week the students will _____ a math test, for which they are preparing now.
- a) take
- b) have
- c) pass
- d) fail
- 17.I don't think I will be able to _____ that exam.
- a) take
- b) have
- c) pass
- d) fail

18. That was an impressive ______ from such a young tennis player.

- a) performance
- b) aptitude

- c) comprehension
- d) competence
- 19. _____is the care of ill patients in their homes, as distinguished from health supervision.
- a) help to the people
- b) aid to the refugees
- c) care of the sick
- d) attitude to the students
- 20. _____involves teaching students the fundamentals, theories, and processes of business.
- a) financial school
- b) economic sphere
- c) marketing school
- d) business education

Part 3. Comparing British and American Education. Student's Talk 3

- 1. Approximately 10,000 ______ are expected to be leaving their friends and family at home and anxiously beginning a new chapter of their lives at the northern equivalent of Oxford and Cambridge.
- a) freshmen
- b) sophomore
- c) sophistry
- d) sophora

2. A second-year university or high school student in the USA is called a

- a) sophomore
- b) fresher
- c) freshman
- d) bachelor student
- a) nursery
- b) prep
- c) secondary
- d) elementary

- 4. A school for children between the ages of about four and eight is known as ______ school.
- a) infant
- b) elementary
- c) primary
- d) prep
- 5. The c_____'s official duty is to confer degrees upon graduands at convocation.
- a) professor
- b) chancellor
- c) staff
- d) tutor

6. A senior administrative officer in certain universities is called ______.

- a) provost
- b) chair
- c) instructor
- d) treasurer
- 7. Under this practice, the college _____ was compelled to hand out as much money as students might request at the beginning of the semester.
- a) instructor
- b) bursar
- c) vice-chancellor
- d) chancellor
- 8. A person appointed to administer or manage the financial assets and liabilities of a society, company, local authority, or other body is called a
- a) instructor
- b) registrar
- c) tutor
- d) treasurer
- 9. A university or college teacher in the UK responsible for the teaching and supervision of assigned students is _____.
- a) instructor
- b) registrar
- c) tutor
- d) treasurer

- 10.Resolutions from the university _____ and several protests, including a hunger strike by seventeen students, have sought to focus public attention on the disparity in benefits.
- a) faculty
- b) provost
- c) bursar
- d) senate

11.I sent that _____ food back to the kitchen.

- a) hobnob
- b) nutritious
- c) excellent
- d) crumbum
- 12. At the end of the seventh the two teams were _____, no hits, no runs, no errors.
- a) even Stephen
- b) angry Bob
- c) fair Helen
- d) lucky John
- 13. After her victory she said: 'I think it's often said that we are portrayed as a party of _____ but I want to go on as a modernising candidate.
- a) hobnobs
- b) crumbums
- c) lovey-doveys
- d) fuddy-duddies
- 14.He can't sit still, flitting from place to place around the globe to make speeches and _____ with celebrities.
- a) hobnob
- b) crumbum
- c) lovey-dovey
- d) fuddy-duddy
- 15.He dated a _____ showgirl.
- a) hobnob
- b) hotsy-totsy
- c) lovey-dovey
- d) fuddy-duddy
- 16. They tried to ______ this nasty little incident out of sight.
- a) hobnob
- b) hugger-mugger

- c) lovey-dovey
- d) fuddy-duddy

17.I want all the _____ romantic feelings and things you feel for her!

- a) lovey-dovey
- b) fuddy-duddy
- c) hugger-mugger
- d) crumbum

18. The village was guarded by a _____ group of soldiers.

- a) true
- b) hobnob
- c) ragtag
- d) false
- 19. They had been recruited at the last minute by a government summer job program and assigned, _____, to the aquarium.
- a) hotsy-totsy
- b) willy-nilly
- c) lovey-dovey
- d) fuddy-duddy
- 20. This ______ out to be a hard job, as the island seems to be inhabited only by shepherds and smugglers.
- a) turns
- b) goes
- c) comes
- d) keeps

Part 4. Qualifications. Student's Talk 4

- 1. I only bought this book because I liked the cover its purple with black
- a) line-lines
- b) herky-jerky
- c) round circles
- d) criss-crosses
- 2. I'm not going to be ______ around and dancing around the issues.
- a) dilly-dallying
- b) flimflamming
- c) shillyshallying
- d) crisscrossing

- 3. Maria, on the other hand, is described by her fellow nuns as 'a ______, a will-o'-the-wisp, a clown
- a) flibbertigibbet
- b) flim-flam
- c) criss-cross
- d) dilly-dally
- 4. This time, she accused him of _____ the country.
- a) criss-crossing
- b) flimflamming
- c) shillyshallying
- d) hustle bustling
- 5. Last night, before bed, I was combing my daughter's hair and she got away from me, running ______ around the coffee table, laughing like the Fourth of July.
- a) herky-jerky
- b) wishy-washy
- c) flibberty-giberty
- d) humdrum
- 6. He could not get up everyday and face the daily _____ life of a high school English teacher.
- a) herky-jerky
- b) wishy-washy
- c) humdrum
- d) flibberty-giberty
- 7. The best way to eliminate stress is to escape from the urban ______ of everyday worries and hard work.
- a) hustle and bustle
- b) criss and cross
- c) flim-flam
- d) dilly-dally
- 8. You know, you can _____ around, but if you want your players to win then you have to give them everything you can.
- a) shilly-shally
- b) herky-jerky
- c) wishy-washy
- d) flim-flam
- 9. The candidate gave a few unsatisfactory _____ answers.
- a) wishy-washy

- b) herky-jerky
- c) shilly-shelly
- d) criss-cross
- 10.A ______ is a university examination in which a student answers questions in speech rather than writing.
- a) viva
- b) thesis
- c) board
- d) committee
- 11. Apart from Cambridge, no other universities offer undergraduates one-toone _____.
- a) lessons
- b) lectures
- c) tutorials
- d) terms

12. A university student who has not yet taken a first degree.

- a) undergraduate
- b) post-graduate
- c) graduate
- d) none of the above
- 13. The family is poor and were _____ for free health care from the government.
- a) legible
- b) edible
- c) comprehensive
- d) eligible
- 14.She was currently relying on the generosity of others to provide her ______ and sustenance.
- a) lodging
- b) hotel
- c) hostel
- d) room

15.If you're traveling solo, a _____ can be cheaper than a hotel.

- a) hostel
- b) canteen
- c) hostel
- d) lodging

16.A college building where students live is a _____.

- a) hall of residence
- b) canteen
- c) hotel
- d) apartment
- 17.Today, most universities require their students to submit electronic ______ and dissertations for their graduation.
- a) diplomas
- b) theses
- c) certificates
- d) thesis

18. The English for випускний клас старшої школи is _____ (senior).

- a) final
- b) graduate
- c) 12th grade
- d) high form

19. The English for *рівень магістра* is _____ level.

- a) undergraduate
- b) graduate
- c) post-graduate
- d) none of the above

20. The English for *докторантура* is _____ level

- a) under-doctorate
- b) post-doctorate
- c) higher doctorate
- d) senior doctorate

Part 5. The Private-State Mishmash

- 1. We should be offering all students, irrespective of their academic _____, the opportunity to fulfil their potential.
- a) possibility
- b) ability
- c) aptitude
- d) performance
- 2. The _____ to the current troubles is provided by the dire state of the country's economy.

- a) background
- b) basement
- c) view
- d) outlook
- 3. Each family farms individually and reaps the _____ of its labor.
- a) profit
- b) benefit
- c) help
- d) worker
- 4. During that time, he found Bryce to be _____, highly intelligent, and for the most part, unafraid.
- a) fair
- b) sunny
- c) bright
- d) kind
- 5. The meeting seemed to be going well until Charles _____ up the issue of holiday pay.
- a) brought
- b) went
- c) came
- d) none of the above
- 6. Men and women ought to be able to _____ for jobs on an equal footing.
- a) compete
- b) compile
- c) cope
- d) carry
- 7. The money he made from these ______ activities enabled him to pursue other ventures.
- a) working
- b) aid
- c) active
- d) extra-curricular
- 8. Why should you waste £250 when you could get it for _____?
- a) me
- b) fun
- c) free
- d) work

9. I was looking at her wondering what sort of school was she running as a _____?

- a) headmistress
- b) headmaster
- c) boss
- d) secretary

10. There are two _____ of around 90 students every year.

- a) intakes
- b) putouts
- c) pullouts
- d) inputs
- 11.I'm trying to ______ ahead at what might happen and be ready to handle it. a) go
- b) move
- c) run
- d) look

12. The old school ______ still has enormous power in such companies.

- a) shirt
- b) tie
- c) trousers
- d) cap

13.I have been ______ to work with the pioneers of silicon technology.

- a) provoked
- b) privileged
- c) prevented
- d) decided
- 14. Things turned real bad in the last year and they became _____, competing for everything.
- a) allies
- b) comrades
- c) friends
- d) rivals

15.Graham's achievements helped _____ him the job.

- a) secure
- b) loose
- c) throw
- d) hire

- 16.The ______ of candidates is understood to be made up exclusively of current Bank of Ireland executives.
- a) longlist
- b) shortlist
- c) smart list
- d) top list
- 17. The story is a magical ______ of fantasy and reality.
- a) mix
- b) smash
- c) mishmash
- d) phenomenon
- 18.Soon, he became the chief _____ for the Palestinian cause in the United States.'
- a) treasurer
- b) provost
- c) spokesman
- d) lawyer
- 19. The years of his government are remembered for political _____ and conflict.
- a) tranquility
- b) tension
- c) placidity
- d) composure
- 20.If you save _____, you gradually collect money by spending less than you get, usually in order to buy something that you want.
- a) up
- b) a lot
- c) with
- d) out

Part 6. The School of Fish

- 1. For a hit show, profits can add _____ millions of dollars.
- a) up to
- b) up with
- c) after to
- d) for to
- 2. We have a flexible approach to what we're doing that allows us to make any necessary changes as we go _____.

- a) for
- b) ahead
- c) along
- d) straight
- 3. Working in an office can suck out all of the energy and _____ in your system.
- a) uniformity
- b) conformity
- c) creativity
- d) possibility
- 4. The law gives him the power to _____ military officers.
- a) throw
- b) bully
- c) betray
- d) overwhelm
- 5. The staff expressed the hope that the administration and governing board would act in _____ with these standards.
- a) uniformity
- b) conformity
- c) creativity
- d) possibility
- 6. She explained how she was very _____ and self-conscious about her accent when she first arrived in this country.
- a) inhibited
- b) prohibited
- c) forbidden
- d) allowed
- 7. Donahoe makes a similar _____, observing that "Christmas is something that punctuates everyone's year, whether they like it or not".
- a) challenge
- b) issue
- c) point
- d) question
- 8. Small repairs such as replacing washers on taps or ______ fuses and broken locks are usually the tenant's responsibility.
- a) mending
- b) bending
- c) blending

- d) none of the above
- 9. Another downside is dealing with _____ clients who don't allow you to move forward with what is clearly the best strategy for their business.
- a) narrow-minded
- b) bright
- c) progressive
- d) advanced
- 10.She is living in substandard rented accommodation where the cooker does not work and the bathroom ______ is leaking.
- a) mending
- b) bending
- c) blending
- d) plumbing
- 11.I don't think anyone could read this behaviour in any other way than being ______ and patronizing.
- a) modest
- b) pompous
- c) obstinate
- d) stubborn
- 12.A recent study into the _____ health benefits of the drink was not conclusive.
- a) purported
- b) supported
- c) concluded
- d) highlighted

13. Something seemed to be wrong, but I couldn't put my _____ on it.

- a) nose
- b) finger
- c) ear
- d) mind

14.I won't fly with an airline that has a bad safety _____.

- a) strategy
- b) record
- c) idea
- d) outlook
- 15. The company expects to _____ production of the vehicle again after a two-month hiatus.

- a) recover
- b) recreate
- c) renovate
- d) resume
- 16.Going on holiday without a school's permission is tantamount to ______, said the junior education minister.
- a) truancy
- b) uniformity
- c) agreement
- d) submission
- 17. The ______ in the appearance and bearing of the assembled delegates is startlingly troubling.
- a) uniformity
- b) conformity
- c) concord
- d) unity
- a) vivid
- b) obscure
- c) wrong
- d) false
- 19. They've been ______ a long campaign to change the law.
- a) carrying
- b) thinking
- c) defining
- d) waging
- 20. They can complain and ______ all they want, but it doesn't change the fact that the world is changing around them.
- a) exult
- b) jubilate
- c) wage
- d) whine

Розділ 2 Граматика

Part 1. The Future Indefinite Tense

1. Some of us will be needed tomorrow to finish the fence because, at this rate , two sections _____ unfinished when we ____work tonight.

a) have remained / stopped

b) will have remained / were stopping

c) are going to remain / will stop

d) will remain / stop

2. By the end of this court session the jury _____ all the witnesses and they _____ the courtroom to decide on a verdict.

a) will have heard / will leave

b) have heard / are leaving

c) are hearing / leave

d) hear / left

3. I feel certain that her new travel agency _____ because she _____ a thorough market survey.

a) is succeeding / will do

b) has succeeded / will have done

c) will succeed / has done

d) was succeeding / is doing

4. Newspapers say the minister _____ someone suitable for the task he _____ to get hold of.

a) is going to appoint/ will want

b) appoints / wants

- c) is appointing / wanted
- d) will appoint / wants

5. I _____ you with your homework as soon as l _____ writing these reports.

a) will help / have finished

b) am helping / have finished

c) have helped / am finishing

d) was going to help / will finish

6. I _____ some wood for the fire while you _____ the salad.

a) will fetch / prepare

b) fetch / are preparing

c) am fetching / will prepare

d) have fetched / prepared

7. I _____ the potatoes while you _____ the leeks for the soup.

a) peeled / will be chopping

b) will have peeled / have chopped

c) peel / will have chopped

d) will peel / chop

8. She says that she _____ the eight o'clock train tomorrow, but I'm sure she _____ it, as usual.

- a) is catching / is missing
- b) has caught / misses

c) will have caught / has missed

d) is going to catch / will miss

9. If you _____ me the truth, I will never speak with you.

- a) won't be telling
- b) don't tell
- c) aren't telling
- d) won't tell

10. She is not sure if she l	his telephone number	in the telephone	directory.
------------------------------	----------------------	------------------	------------

- a) will be finding
- b) will find
- c) will have found
- d) finds

11. I won't leave the house before the postman _____ mail.

- a) is bringing
- b) will have brought
- c) brings
- d) will bring

12. Lionel will come to London as soon as you _____ a place for him to stay.

- a) have found
- b) will have found
- c) are going to find
- d) will find

13. If I _____ George tomorrow, I will tell him to come and see you.

- a) will be meeting
- b) am going to meet
- c) will meet
- d) meet

14. The baby _____ five months old next month. a) is being b) will be c) has been d) will have been 15. It's quite hot; I the fan. a) turn on b) will turn on c) am turning on d) wont turn on 16. I think I _____ you tomorrow at 3:00 PM. a) will see b) see c) will be seeing d) will have seen 17. She doesn't realize what kind of person he is, but she _____. a) will find out b) will be finding out c) will have found out d) find out 18. She insulted me. I _____ to her again! a) will never speak b) will never be speaking c) will have never spoken d) speak 19. She _____ me when her birthday is. a) will not have told b) will not be telling c) won't tell d) tell 20. After we finish this video, I ______ one more of this director's movies. a) will watch b) will be watching c) will have watched d) watch

Part 2. The Future Continuous Tense

1. I expect you _____ from school by this time next year and _____ for a job.

a) have graduated / will have looked

b) are graduating / have been looking

c) will have graduated / will be looking

d) graduate / will have been looking

2. At 9am, he _____ his plane.

a) will have been waiting

b) will be waiting

c) will have waited

d) will wait

3. I'll come home late tonight. But I don't think that by the time I come the children ______ to bed; they ______ for me.

a) will have gone / will have been waiting

b) will be going / will have waited

c) will have gone / will be waiting

d) will have been going / will wait

4. I _____ Colin for a coffee later today.

a) will have seen

b) will be seeing

c) will have been seeing

d) see

5. Tomorrow I _____ all day.

a) paint

b) will be painting

c) will paint

d) will be paint

6. During the festival, I _____ all of this director's movies.

a) will see

b) will be seeing

c) will have seen

d) see

7. – Can I come over in an hour?

– No, I ______ the house.

a) will clean

b) will be cleaning

c) clean

d) will have cleaned clean

8. This time next week I _____ wine in Argentina.

a) will drink

b) drink

c) will be drinking

d) will have drunk drink

9. Don't forget that John _____ when we arrive at the station so we will have to get a taxi.

a) works

b) will have been working

c) will work

d) will be working

10. David ______at the club tonight. We should go and see him. He's a great sax player.

a) plays

b) will play

c) will be playing

d) will have been playing

11. I suppose the weather _____ good.

a) be

b) is

c) will have been

d) will be

12. I think he _____ (find) this work more interesting when he grows up.

a) will find

b) finds

c) will have found

d) will be foung

13. I'm sure that next year this city _____ much better.

a) will be looking

b) will look

c) looks

d) is looking

14. My brothers and I ______ this weekend. We will be too busy studying for exams.a) will not campb) will not be camping

c) will not have been camping

d) do not camp

15. What ______ this afternoon at 3PM? a) will you have done b) will you be doing c) will you do d) you will be doing 16. I'd like to know who _____ all the mess after the party because it is not going to be me. a) cleans up b) will be cleaning up c) will have cleaned d) will have been cleaning 17. When you get off the train, we _____ for you on the platform. a) will wait b) will be waiting c) will have waited d) will have been waiting 18. At noon tomorrow, I ______ on a beach somewhere. a) will be relaxing b) relax c) will relax d) will have been relaxing 19. Julie _____ this time next week. She'll be on holiday. a) will not be working b) will not work c) will not have worked d) will not have been working 20. Don't phone me before 8 o'clock, we _____ dinner. a) will have b) will have had c) will have been having d) will be having

Part 3. The Future Perfect Tense

1. By the end of this court session the jury _____ all the witnesses and they _____ the courtroom to decide on a verdict.

a) have been hearing / have left

b) have heard / are leaving

c) are hearing / leave

d) will have heard / will leave

2. We _____ our work in the garden by the time he _____ from the pharmacist

a) will have finished / arrives

b) will finish / will arrive

c) will be finishing / arrived

d) finished / has arrived

3. Don't forget that we _____ to our new house by the time you get back from holiday.

a) move

- b) will move
- c) will have moved
- d) had moved

4. You _____ for three months by the time you leave for your holiday, so you _____ quite a lot of weight.

a) have been dieting / will be losing

b) will have been dieting / will have lost

c) had dieted / lost

d) were dieting / had lost

5. Of course you can use my summer house in the country. But when you _____ there next month, remember that it _____ for five months.

a) will get / hasn't been cleaned

b) are getting / isn't going to be cleaned

c) are going to get / will not be cleaned

d) get / will not have been cleaned

6. I expect you _____ from school by this time next year and _____ for a job.

a) have graduated / will have looked

b) are graduating / have been looking

c) will have graduated / will be looking

d) graduate / will have been looking

7. For the past 24 hours, a tropical storm _____ the houses of villages in Mozambique, but it is hard to know as yet how much damage it _____ by the time it has stopped.

a) was going to batter / causes

- b) battered / will have been causing
- c) has been battering / will have caused
- d) had been battering / has caused

8. The hikers _____ so tired by the time they _____ the top of the hill that I'm sure they'll first want to sit down for a rest.

- a) will have got / reach
- b) are getting / will have reached
- c) had got / reached
- d) have got / are reaching

9. When the young scouts _____ the top of the hill, they _____ for more than an hour.

- a) reached / have been walking
- b) reach / will have been walking
- c) will have reached / are walking
- d) had reached / were walking

10. The athletes _____ for exactly three months by the time the races _____ due to start.

- a) have been training / will be
- b) will have been training / are
- c) are going to train / will have been
- d) are training / were

11. By 8.30am, he _____ at the airport. (arrive airport).

- a) will be arriving
- b) will arrive
- c) will have arrived
- d) arrives

12. I am reading an English book now. It is so interesting that by the end of the day I _____ reading it.

- a) am finishing
- b) will finish
- c) will be finishing
- d) will have finished

13. They _____ all the problems by the end of the meeting, I am afraid.

- a) won't settle
- b) won't have settled
- c) aren't settling
- d) won't be settling

14. By this time next year Professor Smith _____ on the subject for five years.

- a) will have lectured
- b) will be lecturing
- c) will lecture
- d) will have been lecturing

15. By the beginning of next month the firm _____ for four years.

- a) is functioning
- b) will have been functioning
- c) will function
- d) will have functioned

16. I'll come home late tonight. But I don't think that by the time I come the children _____ to bed; they _____ for me.

a) will have gone / will have been waiting

- b) will be going / will have waited
- c) will have gone / will be waiting
- d) will have been going / will wait

17. When Jerry enters a Medical school he ____ Chemistry for more than four years.

- a) will have been studying
- b) will have studied
- c) will study
- d) will be studying

18. _____ their luggage by the time the taxi comes?

- a) Will they be packing
- b) Will they have packed
- c) They will pack
- d) Will they

19. There's no point leaving now; the film _____ by the time we reach the cinema.

- a) was starting
- b) going to start
- c) will have started
- d) will start

20. By the time you arrive I ______ something spectacular and dinner will be on the table waiting for you.

- a) will cook
- b) will have cooked
- c) will be cooking

d) will have been cooking

Part 4. Future Tense Forms. Different Means of Expressing Future Actions

- 1. My plane _____ at five p.m. on Monday. I don't need to call a taxi, my friend _____ me to the airport.
- a) was leaving / has taken
- b) is leaving / will take
- c) leaves / is going to take
- d) will leave / takes

2. I _____ my boss privately tomorrow and I _____ quite nervous about it.

- a) have seen / am feeling
- b) see / was feeling
- c) am seeing / feel
- d) saw / felt

3. Problems with the hotel, coupled with this awful weather, _____ our holiday miserable, so we _____ before the scheduled time.

- a) have made / have left
- b) were making / leave
- c) make / left
- d) are making / are leaving
- 4. A: What's on TV tonight?
- B: Match of the day, Manchester United _____ South Melbourne.
- a) had played
- b) were playing
- c) are playing
- d) have played

5. Most of the time, John and his friends _____ football matches at their local coffee, but this Saturday, they _____ to the stadium, and so they're all very excited.

- a) watch / are going
- b) have been watching / go
- c) are watching / have gone
- d) were watching / went

6. Bob _____ with us tonight as he _____ an appointment with the dentist.

- a) won't have trained / is making
- b) hasn't trained / was making
- c) doesn't train / makes

d) isn't going to train / has made

7. She says that she _____ the eight o'clock train tomorrow, but I'm sure she _____ it, as usual.

a) is catching / is missing

b) has caught / misses

c) will have caught / has missed

d) is going to catch / will miss

8. The windows in my flat are dirty. I haven't cleaned them yet. I _____ it this Saturday.

a) will be doing

b) am going to do

c) will do

d) am doing

9. I ______ to a party tomorrow. Would you like to come?

a) will be going

b) will have gone

c) will go

d) am going

10. Where _____ work after you graduate from the University?

a) are you going to

b) you will

c) will you

d) you are going to

11. Sue _____ the doctor later today about her stomachache.

a) is seeing

b) has seen

c) was seeing

d) will see

12. I ______ a little late tomorrow so I'll probably miss the start of the ceremony.

a) am going to be

b) will be being

c) am

d) will have been

13. On Friday at 8 o'clock I _____ my friend.

a) will meet

b) meet

c) am meeting

d) will have met

14. Paul ______ to London on Monday morning.

a) will fly

b) flies

c) will have been flying

d) is flying

15. Wait! I _____ you to the station.a) am going to driveb) will drivec) will have drown

d) am driving

16. I _____ the cigarettes from the corner shop when it _____.

a) am going to buy / will open

b) will buy / opens

c) will buy / will open

d) am buying / opens

17. I _____ you know the second the builders _____ decorating.

a) will let / will finish

b) let / have finished

c) am going to let / are finishing

d) will let / have finished

18. This summer, I _____ in Brighton for four years.

a) will live

b) will be living

c) will have been living

d) am going to live

19. The English lesson _____ at 8:45.

a) will stat

b) starts

c) is starting

d) is going to start

20. Look at the clouds – it _____ in a few minutes.

a) is going to rain

b) rains

c) will be raining

d) is raining

Part 5. The Rules of sequence of tenses. Reported Speech

1. Even though he denied what he _____ earlier, he _____ to join us.

a) said / has accepted

b) has said / had accepted

c) has been saying / has accepted

d) had said / accepted

2. Newspapers yesterday said that Michael Keller _____ a three-year contract

- a) had signed
- b) would have signed
- c) was singing

d) has signed

3. The pupil explained to the teacher that he couldn't come to school that day because he _____.

a) was ill

- b) has been ill
- c) is ill
- d) had been ill

4. Why did you say that Paul _____ a careful driver?

- a) isn't
- b) wasn't
- c) hadn't been
- d) will not be

5. She explained that she _____ me her book; she should take it back to the library the next day.

- a) can't give
- b) couldn't give
- c) is not able to give
- d) couldn't have given

6. I thought you said Jack _____ you when he got back from his trip to the mountains.

- a) ought to phone
- b) would phone
- c) phoned
- d) will phone

7. Mark told Nancy that he _____ his dog at last, and the worried expression began to disapper from his face.a) has found

b) must find

c) found

d) had found

8. Wanda complained to me that the children _____very naughty that evening.

- a) was
- b) were
- c) had been
- d) would be

9. Cindy was not sure if the delegation _____ or not, and she didn't know whom to ask about it.

- a) arrived
- b) was arriving
- c) had arrived
- d) had been arriving

10. The librarian didn't think the students _____ their books to the library by the following week yet.

- a) would have taken
- b) would take
- c) took
- d) have taked

11. Sheila said that she _____ leave the office earlier that day to get to the station in time.

- a) would have to
- b) had to
- c) had had to
- d) have had to

12. Jerry said that by the end of the year he _____ in his new house for four years.

- a) would be living
- b) would live
- c) would have been living
- d) lived

13. Lawrence _____ his son to play video games for half an hour.

- a) permitted
- b) refused
- c) agreed
- d) asked

14. Alice explained to us that the flower shop _____ down the road.

a) had been situated b) was situated c) is situated d) has been situated 15. Sharon said she _____ her key in her pocket, but she couldn't find it there. a) had left b) had been left c) left d) would leave 16. 14 The doctor _____ me to get as much rest as possible. a) advised b) agreed c) offered d) asked 17. Alice told me _____ that coat because it wasn't long enough. a) not to buy b) bought c) to buy d) would buy 18. Sue _____ me she would be late for the meeting. a) asked b) said c) told d) offered 19. Ann said she _____ while her brother was watching TV. a) was studying b) has studied c) had studied d) studied 20. He wondered ______ to invite Chris to the party or not. a) if b) how c) whether d) that

Part 6. The Passive Voice

- 1. Not much ______ about the accident since that time.
- a) said
- b) has said
- c) has been said
- d) is said

2. A new book _____ by that company next year.

- a) will publish
- b) is publishing
- c) is published
- d) will be published
- 3. He _____ the girl's name now.
- a) remembers
- b) is remembered
- c) has remembered
- d) will remember
- 4. Our plan _____ by the members of the committee.
- a) is considered
- b) is being considered
- c) considers
- d) is considering
- 5. He _____ responsible for the accident.
- a) was holding
- b) is holding
- c) hold
- d) was held
- 6. A prize _____ to whoever solves this equation.
- a) gives
- b) will be given
- c) will be giving
- d) has given

7. Detroit _____ as the first capital city of Michigan, but now Lansing is the capital city of Michigan.

- a) have been chosen
- b) chosen
- c) was chosen
- d) has been chosen

8. Battle Creek is a hard-working city, where businesses _____ dedicated employees who want to build a good life for their families.

- a) have not found
- b) found
- c) have found
- d) find
- 9. A famous architect _____ the bridge.
- a) built
- b) have built
- c) was built
- d) has been built
- 10. The house _____ by a pop star.
- a) bought
- b) was bought
- c) have bought
- d) has bought

11. A cinema is a place where films _____.

- a) have been shown
- b) show
- c) are shown
- d) showed
- 12. People _____ this road very often.
- a) aren't used
- b) don't use
- c) haven't used
- d) haven't been used
- 13. Football _____ for hundred of years.
- a) has played
- b) has been played
- c) was played
- d) is played

14. The Earth's surface _____ with water.

- a) has mostly been covered
- b) was mostly covered
- c) is mostly covered
- d) doesn't mostly cover

15. For more than 200 years the USA Constitution _____ 26 times.

a) has been amended

- b) is being amended
- c) is amended
- d) amended

16. A new shopping centre _____ in the city centre last Saturday.

- a) has been opened
- b) is opened
- c) was opened
- d) had been opened

17. The celebrity _____ at the moment.

- a) is interviewed
- b) is being interviewed
- c) has been interviewed
- d) is interviewing

18. America _____ by Christopher Columbus in 1492.

- a) was discovered
- b) has been discovered
- c) was being discovered
- d) had discovered

19. The kitchen table _____ yet.

- a) hasn't been cleaned
- b) isn't being cleaned
- c) wasn't being cleaned
- d) hasn't cleaned

20. This monument was built _____ the Aztecs.

- a) with
- b) by
- c) from
- d) of

Зразок модульного контролю

1. I ______ you with the barbeque if you like.

a) will be helping

b) will help

c) help

d) am helping

2. The lock was cut _____ a special tool.

a) by

- b) from
- c) with
- d) of

3. The football team for the cup final _____ by next week.

- a) is being selected
- b) is selected
- c) will have been selected
- d) will have been selecting

4. A large amount of goods _____ from an electrical shop last night.

- a) are stolen
- b) were stolen
- c) are being stolen
- d) will steal

5. They said they might _____ to the theatre the following night.

- a) going
- b) go
- c) have gone
- d) will go

6. He told me he _____ the letter the previous day.

- a) had sent
- b) was sending
- c) had been sending
- d) would send
- 7. I ______ you if I have any problems.
- a) will call
- b) will be calling
- c) call
- d) am calling

8. There is a serious problem. I _____ at around 4.pm to discuss it. a) will be calling b) will call c) call d) am calling 9. You ______ an answer to your proposals by tomorrow. a) will receive b) will be receiving c) will have received d) receive 10. By the time we get there, the store _____. a) will close b) will have closed c) closed d) closes 11. If he continues drinking so fast, he ______ the whole bottle by midnight. a) will drink b) will have drunk c) will be drinking d) will have been drinking 12. Wuthering Heights was written _____ Emily Bronte. a) with b) by c) from d) of 13. That film _____ by an Australian director. a) directs b) was directed c) directed d) is directing 14. By this time tomorrow, you _____ notified about the meeting. a) will have been b) should be c) will be d) are 15. He said he _____ to university the following year. a) would return

43

b) has returned c) had returned d) returns 16. Jessica _____ me to meet her at the entrance to the cinema. a) says b) said c) asked d) suggested 17. She said she _____ white-water rafting before. a) hadn't tried b) wouldn't try c) wasn't trying d) didn't try 18. The flight attendant ______ us to stay seated. a) said b) told c) says d) asked 19. There is a day care _____ for children and other facilities for the community. a) crèche b) kindergarten c) prep school d) primary school 20. A ______ school in the UK is a school for children aged between eleven and 18 who have passed an examination. a) grammar b) comprehensive c) Junior d) infant 21. Girls tend to do better academically in single-sex schools than in _____ ones. a) free b) voluntary c) coeducational d) combined

- 22. Amid all the ______ of the party convention, it was easy to forget about the real political issues.
- a) razzle-dazzle
- b) teeny-weeny
- c) yoo-hoo
- d) palsy-walsy
- 23.A ______ school is a private school supported by a particular church or parish.
- a) nursery
- b) comprehensive
- c) vocational
- d) parochial
- 24. Laughter filled the streets along with frequent _____ and bargains being made every few seconds.'
- a) chit-chat
- b) fifty-fifty
- c) flip-flop
- d) mishmash

25.I like the simple, durable types that have manual controls - no electronic

- a) fifty-fifty
- b) jim-jams
- c) no-no
- d) hocus-pocuses
- 26. The president has a strong and experienced staff to _____ us ____ this difficult time.
- a) pull ... out
- b) come ... through
- c) get ... through
- d) pull ... through

27.A second-year university or high school student in the USA is called a

- a) sophomore
- b) fresher
- c) freshman
- d) bachelor student
- 28. A school for children between the ages of about four and eight is known as ______ school.

- a) infant
- b) elementary
- c) primary
- d) prep

29. A senior administrative officer in certain universities is called ______.

- a) provost
- b) chair
- c) Instructor
- d) treasurer
- 30. He can't sit still, flitting from place to place around the globe to make speeches and _____ with celebrities.
- a) hobnob
- b) crumbum
- c) lovey-dovey
- d) fuddy-duddy
- 31. I'm not going to be ______ around and dancing around the issues.
- a) dilly-dallying
- b) flimflamming
- c) shillyshallying
- d) crisscrossing
- 32. The best way to eliminate stress is to escape from the urban ______ of everyday worries and hard work.
- a) hustle and bustle
- b) criss and cross
- c) flim-flam
- d) dilly-dally

33. Apart from Cambridge, no other universities offer undergraduates one-to-one

- a) lessons
- b) lectures
- c) tutorials
- d) terms
- 34. Today, most universities require their students to submit electronic ______ and dissertations for their graduation.
 - a) diplomas
 - b) theses
 - c) certificates
 - d) thesis

35. Each family farms individually and reaps the _____ of its labor.

- a) profit
- b) benefit
- c) help
- d) worker

36. There are two ______ of around 90 students every year.

- a) intakes
- b) putouts
- c) pullouts
- d) inputs

37. The old school ______ still has enormous power in such companies.

- a) shirt
- b) tie
- c) trousers
- d) cap

38. If you save _____, you gradually collect money by spending less than you get, usually in order to buy something that you want.

- a) up
- b) a lot
- c) with
- d) out
- 39. Things turned real bad in the last year and they became _____, competing for everything.
- a) allies
- b) comrades
- c) friends
- d) rivals
- 40. He could not get up everyday and face the daily _____ life of a high school English teacher.
- a) herky-jerky
- b) wishy-washy
- c) humdrum
- d) flibberty-giberty

Відповіді

Розділ 1. Лексика Частина 1. Britain and Primary Education. Student's Talk 1

1b	11c
2c	12a
3a	13a
4d	14a
5d	15c
6d	16b
7a	17b
8a	18c
9c	19a
10b	20a

Частина 2. The United States. Elementary and Secondary Education. Student's Talk 2

1a 2d 3a	11b 12a 13c
4b 5a	14a 15c
6b	16a
7d	17c
8d	18a
9a	19c
10b	20d

Частина 3. Comparing British and American Education. Student's Talk 3

1a	11d
2a	12a
3d	13d

4a	14a
5b	15b
ба	16b
7b	17a
8d 9c	18c
9c	19b
10d	20a

Частина 4. Qualifications. Student's Talk 4

1d	11c
2a	12a
3a	13d
4b	14a
5a	15a
6c	16a
7a	17b
8a	18c
9a	19b
10a	20d

Частина 5. The Private-State Mishmash

1b	11d
2a	12b
3b	13b
4c	14d
5a	15a
ба	16b
7d	17a
8c	18c
9a	19b
10a	20a

Частина 6. The School of Fish

1a 2c	11b 12a
3c	13b
4b	14b
5b	15d
ба	16a
7c	17a
8a	18a
9a	19d

Розділ 2. Граматика Частина 1. The Future Indefinite Tense

1. d	11. c
2. a	12. a
3. c	13. d
4. a	14. b
5. a	15. b
6. a	16. a
7. d	17. a
8. d	18. a
9. b	19. c
10. b	20. a

Частина 2. The Future Continuous Tense

1. c	11. d
2. b	12. a
3. c	13. b
4. b	14. b
5. b	15. b
6. b	16. b
7. b	17. b
8. c	18. a
9. d	19. a
9. d	19. a
10. c	20. d

Частина 3. The Future Perfect Tense

11. c
12. d
13. b
14. d
15. b
16. c
17. a
18. b
19. c
20. b

Частина 4. Future Tense Forms. Different Means of Expressing Future Actions

1. c	11. a
2. c	12. a
3. d	13. c
4. c	14. d
5. a	15. b
6. d	16. b
7. d	17. d
8. b	18. c
9. d	19. b
10. a	20. a

Частина 5. The Rules of sequence of tenses. Reported Speech

1. d 2. a	11. a 12. c
3. a	13. a
4. b	14. b
5. b	15. a
6. b	16. a
7. d	17. a
8. c	18. c
9. c	19. a
10. a	20. c

Частина 6. The Passive Voice

1. c	11. c
2. d	12. b
3. a	13. b
4. b	14. c
5. d	15. a
6. b	16. c
7. c	17. b
8. d	18. a
9. a	19. a
10. b	20. d

Зразок модульного контролю

1b	11b	21c	31a
2c	12b	22a	32a
3c	13b	23d	33c
4b	14a	24a	34b
5b	15a	25d	35b
ба	16c	26c	36a
7a	17a	27a	37b
8b	18b	28a	38a
9c	19a	29a	39d
10b	20a	30a	40c

Джерела

- 1. Черноватий Л.М., Карабан В.І., Набокова І.Ю., Рябих М.В. Практичний курс англійської мови. Частина І. Підручник для студентів молодших курсів вищих закладів освіти (філологічні спеціальності та спеціальність «Переклад»). Dictum Factum Practical English Course (Preintermediate). Вінниця: «НОВА КНИГА», 2005. 355 с.
- 2. Collins Free Online Dictionary [Електронний ресурс].: URL: https://www.collinsdictionary.com/dictionary/english
- 3. CambridgeDictionary.[Електронний ресурс].:URL:https://dictionary.cambridge.org/ru/
- 4. Mann M., Taylore-Knowles S. Destination C1-C2. Grammar & Vocabulary / M. Mann, S. Taylore-Knowles. Macmillan Education, 2009. 312 p.
- 5. Merriam Webster Dictionary. [Електронний ресурс].: URL: https://www.merriam-webster.com
- 6. Oxford English Dictionary. [Електронний ресурс].: URL: https://en.oxforddictionaries.com
- 7. Vince M. English grammar and vocabulary. / M. Vince. Macmillan, 2010. 344 p.
- 8. Yule G. Oxford Practice Grammar Advanced / G. Yule. Oxford University Press, 2017. 288 p.